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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (if known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The village of Sparta, the county seat of Hancock County, was founded in 
the late^lTQQ's and took on its present appearance in the 19th century. In 
size and architectural style it is still primarily a 19th century town. 
The Sparta District has boundaries as follows: beginning at the intersection 
of Hamilton and BurwelJL Streets continue SQu±h^on__Bjarwell St. to Broad St.; 
from there one block east £5lSahup_Street and continue on Rabun Street sbutt 
and west so as to include the Abercrombie-Fraley-Dickens House. The southerr 
boundary is defined by West^tr^e^frpm_Rabim^^ ,atrefii~tQ,.JBol^^Jjtreet; noirtii 

to Adams Street; continue on Adams Street to Elm Street and
continue np:i^^ back to intersection 
of Hamilton and Burwell including that portion of Jones Street as far as 
necessary to include Clinch Terrace property. The boundaries given above 
are intended to include properties on both sides of the streets designated.

The most impressive entrance into present-day Sparta is the sweeping </> 
tree-lined view up by Jones Street to the;. 1881 VAct^rjLan style courthouse. m 
Along the road are two main estates; the Terrell-Stone House is the 1819 two 
story house with Palladian door and window treatments and parapet, an office- 
cottage and cut-rock kitchen that was first owned by the prominent physician 
and agriculturist, Dr. William, Terrell; the other house, Clinch Terrace J[182!), : 
a full-blown Greek RevjLyaJUstructure with a full Doric Portico, was the home 
of Terrell's daughter. At one time elaborate gardens joined the two estates 
On the other side of Jones Street, just out of sightbehind a grove of trees 
is Old Dominion, a c.l8jQ,6 derelict, Federal style home of one of Sparta's 
pioneer citizens, John Lucas. c

n
The courthouse square acts as the center of town. The finely detailed _^ 

brick courthouse was designed in 1881 by-Parkins- and Bruce, Architects, 
Atlanta. It has a mansard roof and a slightly projecting central section 
that only hints of the temple form; a spire rises from the central section. 
A variety of structures, a Victorianized two-story frame house, a raised 
cottage and a late 18th century cottage, along with commercial structures 
surround the square area.

Broad Street, that runs in front of the courthouse continues westward to 
the oldest part of town, the Rabun Street or Maiden Lane area. At the cornei 
of Broad and Rabun streets are two important twin houses: The Sayre-Shivers 
House and the Bird-Campbell House. The Sayre-Shivers House was built 1830-9 
for New Yorker, Robert Sayre, and is a transitional Federal-Greek Revival 
structure with a delicately leaded side and transom lights around the front 
door; four-room central hall in plan, this house is often called a twin to 
the Bird-Campbell House across Rabun Street. Farther up Broad Street is the 
Rossiter-Little house, generally considered the oldest hojisein Sparta. The 
present structure was built onto and around a log cabinM1797); used first as 
a fort and later by the Revolutionary surgeon, Timothy R^ssTter. It is 
built on the highest point in Sparta. Nearby are several other structures 
including the Lula Rives House (c.1805), the Vardiman House (late 19th cen­ 
tury) and the grand neo-glassical Springer-Dickens House (c.1900), on 
Burwell Street.

Rabun Street, or Maiden Lane as it is usually referred to, behind the

z
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7. Description
twin houses is a quiet residential street with a pleasant variety of architec­ 
tural styles from the plantation plain style Baxter-Carswell House to the 
Federal styles of the Abercrombie-Fraley-Dickens House and the Berry-Morris 
House (1805-10) to the severe Greek Revival temple form structure as in the Old 
Dormitory of the "Sparta Female Model School" founded in 1832. One exception 
is the 20th century, California Greene brothers style house known as the 
Walker-Moore House.

The commercial section of Sparta is east of the courthouse on Broad Street 
Especially noteworthy is the Drummer's or Lafayette Hotel (1840) with its broad 
portico and stepped gable, the brick Watkins Building with simple Italianate 
bracketing, the two story brick Dickens Law Office and several smaller commer­ 
cial structures.

The eastern boundary of the district is defined by Elm Street on which 
several early 19th century structures still exist. At the intersection of 
Adams Street and Elm Street is the side hall planned, raised two-story Greek 
Revival structure called Pomegranate Hall (c.1830), named for the variety of 
pomegranates found in the yard. At the other end of Elm Street are the Harley- 
Rives House, (c.1850), a two story, four room, central plan structure with an 
unusually high entablature, and the smaller cottage-like structure known as the 
Lane-Walker House (c.1835).

Structures , as shown on sketch map from The Architecture of Middle Georgia

1. Old Dominion
2. Terrell-Stone House
3. Harley-Rives House
4. Clinch Terrace
5. Pomegranate Hall
6. Sayre-Shivers House
7. Bird-Campbell House
8. Ethridge-Dubose-Peck House
9. Lane-Walker House

10. Rossiter-Little House
11. Alston-Wiley House
13. Abercrombie-Skinner-Morris House
14. Baxter-Carswell House

15. Treadwell-Blanchard House
17. Graves Barn
18. Little Red House on the Square
19. Walker-Moore House
20. County Courthouse
21. LaFayette Hotel
22. Watkins-Fraley Building
23. Dickens Law Building
24. Presbyterian Church
26. Bank of Hancock County

GPO 921-724
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The central Georgia town.of Sparta.was one of the.most advanced 19th , 
century "plantation" towns in Georgia. Sparta 1 s.intellectual progressive- 
ness was -manifested.in its: educational institutions, its early experimental 
planting, and its. architecture. It was and-is the county, seat of Hancock. 
County. Designated the county.seat in 1797, and incorporated in 1805, 
Sparta is the oldest city west of the Ogeedhee River, even two years older, 
than Milledgeville. George White in 1849 Statistics of Georgia notes that,, 
"this place is proverbial for the intelligence of'its inhabitants... Prom 
the earliest settlements of this county, the citizens have been particular­ 
ly distinguished for their great attention to.the subject of education. At 
this time there are four academies, besides 20 common schools in the county. 
Not only did Sparta have one of the first girlsC schools, but more important 
ly early in the 19th century, experimental agricultural planting was carried 
on by the Hancock Planters Club. -A FarmerlsjGazette was published in Sparta 
from 1803-6 and the first agricultural fair in Georgia was held *in 1841.

Most of the active remnants of these learned institutions have long 
since disappeared, but the progressive atmosphere that pervaded Sparta in 
the nineteenth.century is still very much evident in the Greek Revival and 
Victorian architecture. Clinch-Terrace was built as a completely realised 
Greek Revival style mansion with a full two-story portico in 1825. Accord­ 
ing to the transferral of deed in 1829, "a large columned house" was the 
subject of the transfer of property. The same pattern of up-to-date atten­ 
tion to architectural styles is found in the elaborate Victorian cottage, 
the Dubose-Peck House, built well before the Civil War in 1853. Architec­ 
tural examples such as these made the major residential and commercial t 
streets an outstanding collection and "fabric" of nineteenth centuryc f' •- 
architecture!deservingonational recognition.
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